

Santa Clara University Catala Club Established 1930

The Catala Club Roster is a confidential listing for Club use only.

The information contained herein may not be used for political, commercial or self-serving solicitations.

Information as of January 2023

www.scu.edu/catala

HISTORY

The Catala Club of Santa Clara University was established by Father James J. Lyons, S.J. in 1930, one hundred years after the death of Magin Catala, O.F.M. who was known as the "The Holy Man of Santa Clara."

Magin Catala was born in Spain on June 13, 1761 and entered a Franciscan Monastery at the age of sixteen. On completion of his theological studies, he was ordained a priest in 1785. The following year, Father Catala left Spain and spent the next six years in apostolic work among the Indians in the mission areas of New Spain, now the Republic of Mexico.

In 1794, Father Catala arrived at Mission Santa Clara in Alta California and spent the next thirty-six years teaching the basics of Christianity and instructing the neophytes how to read, write and farm their crops. His ministry and dedication improved the lives of the native Californians and his exemplary life became known throughout the land.

Father Catala died on November 22, 1830 and his body was interred in the Mission Church on the Campus of Santa Clara University. A bronze plaque commemorating his life and indicating the special site of his grave is located to the left of the Crucifix Altar in the Mission Church.

WHAT IS CATALA CLUB

Concerned for the welfare, care and comfort of the young men attending Santa Clara University, Father James Lyons, S.J. founded Catala Club on April 27, 1930.

Working with the wives and friends of the Santa Clara community, the main focus of the Club was to make the students feel cared for, comfortable and supported. Over time, this was done by decorating and providing furniture, meals and necessities in Nobili Hall, Adobe Lodge and the Donohoe Infirmary.

They also established a student loan fund that, in the 1950's, became the Catala Club Scholarship Fund. Over the years, Catala Club has evolved into a women's service organization, raising funds to continue its mission of providing scholarships to Santa Clara University undergraduate students as well as supporting other programs (academic, health, etc.) within the University system.

Catala Club has a long tradition of selfless service and dedication to Santa Clara University. The motto of the Club is "Service, Support and Spirituality."

MEMBERSHIP

Membership in Catala Club is open to alumnae of Santa Clara University, mothers, sisters or relatives of students (past and present), guardians of students, wives of alumni, mothers/relatives of Jesuits, feminine benefactors and friends of the University.

Catala Club welcomes women of all faiths who share their spirituality through their common awareness of a Christian life. Catala links the past to the present by cherishing the University traditions and goals established by St. Ignatius of Loyola.

PURPOSE

Catala Club's main activity is to provide financial assistance to undergraduate students at the University. Fund raising events are held periodically. The proceeds are assigned to the Catala Club Endowed Scholarship Funds of Santa Clara University as determined by the current Board of Directors.

Many members of Catala also belong to other campus organizations and many are recognized through the President's Club for their generosity. Catala Club members serve the University by cooperating in various other University endeavors.

The objectives of the Santa Clara University Catala Club are those proper to an organization of service founded for the benefit of all the University. Catala Club shall stimulate enthusiasm and support for all those educational programs and social functions that assist Santa Clara University in achieving its academic goals. The Club serves the University by providing certain scholarships for undergraduate students. It instills in its membership vital interest in the history and traditions of the University by particularly promoting the family spirit that from early years has prevailed on campus. Catala Club remains at the service of the President of the University in those activities considered proper to Santa Clara's general welfare.

ACTIVITIES

Catala Club holds monthly general meetings in the months of September through May. Many meetings are held on Campus and feature informative programs, speakers and/or entertainment. There are at least two liturgical celebrations scheduled each year which usually occur in the Mission Church. In addition, various special programs and performances are planned throughout the year such as a homecoming tea and social, silent auction dinner dances, a fashion show, boutiques, bus trips, wine tasting and luncheons, a benefit shopping day, theater parties, summer socials . . . all for fun fund raising.

A monthly newsletter communicates Catala's activities to membership.

SYMBOLS

The symbol of the Club is a pink rose. The Club's pin is triangular in shape. The top symbolizes God and the base symbolizes friendship among its members. The pin also represents the three special virtues embodied in the Catala motto: Service, Support and Spirituality.



The Catala Club Coat of Arms

The symbolic elements of the Coat of Arms are defined as follows:

Colors: Red and Gold

Visored Helmet: Defense of truth and wisdom

Acanthus Leaves: Greek emblem of the fine arts and an early Christian symbol of immortality

Upper Left Quarter: From the Coat of Arms of the Family of

Saint Ignatius of Loyola

Upper Right Quarter: From the Coat of Arms of the Franciscan Order

<u>Center</u>: Circular Seal of Santa Clara University with IHS (the first three letters of the name of Jesus in Greek); three nails of the Crucifixion; the American Eagle; thirteen stars representing the original American colonies; 1851, the founding date of the University; A.M.D.G., the Jesuit motto: "Ad Majorem Dei Gloriam" (for the Greater Glory of God)

Lower Left Quarter: Mission Santa Clara de Assis founded January 12, 1777

<u>Lower Right Quarter</u>: Mission Bell inscribed with the Spanish Bourbon Coat of Arms, the symbol of the preservation of Spanish culture in California

Ribboned Motto: "Monstra te esse Matrem" – Be to us a Mother

2022-2023 CATALA CLUB OFFICERS

President Laurie Hernandez First Vice President Joan Cattermole Second Vice President Katy Kelly Secretary Rosanne Adona **BC** Gibbons Treasurer **Assistant Treasurer** Pat DeMarlo Historian Mary Atwell Parliamentarian Jeannie Mahan **Immediate Past President** Charlene Raisch

BOARD OF DIRECTORS ONE-YEAR BOARD (Voting Power)

Kate Canessa Leana Giannini
Sue Davison Fran Lowry
Cathy De Maria Kathleen Nygard
Joan Ferrari

TWO-YEAR BOARD (Voting Power)

Lisa De Lusignan Shannon Potts
Julie Jaroshenko Kris Stanga
Ann Lindahl Nancy Tarantino
Birdie Pacelli Mary Jane Vitkovich

ADVISORY BOARD

(No Voting Power)

Mary Conlon-Almassy Dianne Bonino Joanne Moul

APPOINTED POSITIONS

*Chaplain*Father Jack Treacy, S.J.

Liturgical Coordinator Fran Lowry

Social Media Coordinator Birdie Pacelli

Luncheon & Program
Coordinator
Joan Cattermole

Liaison
SCU University Relations
Julie Stone

Newsletter Editor
Cathy De Maria

SCU Bronco
Food Insecurity Program
Nancy Tarrantino

Membership Communications Leana Giannini

Liaison SCU Theater, Athletics, De Saisset Museum Kate Canessa *Sunshine* Joan Ferrari

Board RefreshmentsAnn Lindahl

Spiritual Retreats
Sue Davison

50/50 Raffle Julie Jaroshenko

Membership Chair Katy Kelly

PhotographerMary Atwell

Assistant Membership Chair Kris Stanga

CATALA CLUB PRESIDENTS

Eunice Sullivan	1930-1936*	Rose Danna	1979-1980*
Rose Flynn	1936-1946*	Anne Morrisey	1980-1981*
Carnelia Baker	1946-1948*	Juanita Lennon	1981-1982*
Rose Amaral	1948-1950*	Vicky Kirkish	1982-1983*
Marie Bean	1950-1952*	Frances O'Brien	1983-1984*
Honore McCarthy	1952-1953*	Eve Hoskins	1984-1985
Marian Reinhardt	1953-1954*	Rose Marie Colli	1985-1986*
Margaret Trevy	1954-1955*	Dorothy Verburgt	1986-1987*
Elizabeth Tiernan	1955-1956*	Gloria Citti	1987-1988
Catherine Farrell	1956-1957*	Lois Gordon	1988-1990
Jewel Morettini	1957-1958*	Abby Sobrato	1990-1991*
Gloria Anello	1958-1959*	Mae Ferraro	1991-1992*
Pauline Mieuli	1959-1961*	Janet Pessagno	1992-1993*
Mary Murtha	1961-1962*	Rose Wong	1993-1994
Gerry Belick	1962-1963*	Mikki Squires	1994-1995*
Dorothy Freitas	1963-1964*	Carol Sabatino	1995-1996
Eleanor Mobeck	1964-1965*	Helen Owen	1996-1997
Del Ravizza	1965-1966*	Janell Scalora	1997-1998*
Elizabeth Gillick	1966-1967*	Cathy De Maria	1998-2000
Eileen Murphy	1967-1968*	Betty Ford	2000-2002
Ann Talia	1968-1969*	Pat Mahan	2002-2004
Anne Borzone	1969-1970*	Ann Bertram	2004-2006*
Edith Perrelli	1970-1971*	Mary Conlon Almassy	2006-2008
Freida Bonetti	1971-1972*	Dianne Bonino	2008-2010
Angel Goscila	1972-1973*	Joanne Sabatino Moul	2010-2012
Elaine Orlando	1973-1974*	Jeannie Mahan	2012-2014
Louise Pfeiffer	1974-1975	Dianne Bonino	2014-2015
Rose Wong	1975-1976	Debbie McBride	2015-2017
Louise Berger	1976 -1977*	Mary Atwell	2017-2019
Lucille Polverino	1977-1978*	Charlene Raisch	2019-2021
Betty Ford	1978-1979	Laurie Hernandez	2021-present

LIFE MEMBERS

Gloria Anello*	Jo Mae Gonyea	Patsy Lee Rossetti
Joy Belli	Lois Gordon	Joan Rueda
Josephine Breen*	Eileen Murphy*	Jeanne Schaefer
Frances Cherrstrom*	Jackie Nichols	Susan Shank
Gloria Citti	Louise Pfeiffer	Violette Simi
Rose Marie Colli*	Delia Picone*	Dorothy Verburgt*
Betty Ford	Lucille Polverino*	Rose Wong

HONORARY MEMBER Winnie Hook*

JESUIT RELATIVES

Merilee Amos	Fr. Mark Torres	Nephew
	Fr. Louis Kern*	Cousin
	Fr. Arthur Spearman*	Cousin
Mary Terry Bader*	Fr. Thomas Terry*	Brother
Betty Baumann*	Fr. John Baumann	Brother-in-law
Patricia Boitano	Fr. Michael McCarthy Cousin	
Kathy Bonfiglio	Fr. Gregory Bonfiglio Son	
Dianne Bonino	Fr. William Donnelly* Uncle	
	Fr. Leonard Sullivan*	Uncle
Dorothy Cahalan*	Fr. Patrick Cahalan*	Son
Jeannie Conner	Fr. William Rewak	Uncle
Sue Davison	Fr. William Hausmann*	Uncle
Marie Engh*	Fr. Michael Engh	Son
Diane Fitzgerald*	Fr. Paul Fitzgerald	Son
Anna Marie Gruba*	Fr. John Baumann	Brother
Gigi Harvey	Fr. Louis Bannan*	Uncle
Marian Hughes*		
Marie Locatelli*	Fr. Paul Locatelli*	Son
Sr. Mary Marius Mei*	Fr. Alexis Mei*	Brother
Virginia Moody*	Fr. Mark Torres	Nephew
Amy Morey	Fr. Michael Silva	Brother
Mary Morris	Fr. Patrick Cahalan*	Brother
Eldora Rewak*	Fr. William Rewak	Son
Betty Torres*	Fr. Mark Torres	Son
Clara Wade*	Fr. Jerry Wade Son	
Maryrose Wall	Fr. John Baumann Brother	
Dorothy Weston*	Fr. Thomas Weston Son	
Cecilia Wilde*	Fr. John Baumann	Brother

CATALA CLUB CHAPLAINS

Fr. James Lyons, S.J.	1930*	Fr. Vincent McGinty, S.J.	1959-1961*
Fr. Joseph Georgen, S.J.	1930-1931*	Fr. William Burman, S.J.	1961-1962*
Fr. James Lyons, S.J.	1931-1935*	Fr. Joseph Martin, S.J.	1962-1967*
Fr. Louis Rudolph, S.J.	1935-1940*	Fr. Felton O'Toole, S.J.	1967-1982*
Fr. Charles Walsh, S.J.	1940-1945*	Fr. Norman Martin, S.J.	1982-1993*
Fr. William Gianera, S.J.	1945-1951*	Fr. William Donnelly, S.J.	1993-2012*
Fr. Herman Hauck, S.J.	1951-1953*	Fr. Robert Scholla, S.J.	2013-2016
Fr. Joseph Pociask, S.J.	1953-1959*	Fr. Jack Treacy, S.J.	2016-present

*deceased

2022-2023 CATALA CALENDAR

(All Board Meetings occur the **First** Wednesday of the month at 10:00 a.m.)

General Meetings, Luncheons & Events*

September 21, 2022

Guest Speaker: Dr. Julie Sullivan, SCU President

October 19, 2022

Guest Speaker: Ellen Kreitzberg, SCU Law Professor

November 16, 2023

Day of Remembrance Mass, Mission Church Guest Speaker: Katie Mahon, Author, <u>The Miracle Collectors</u>

December 14, 2022

Christmas Tea, Williman Room, Benson Center

January 18, 2023

New Year Lunch, China Stix

February 15. 2023

Kyoto Palace

March 16, 2023 (Thursday)

Annual Day of Reflection, Becket Hall, St. Thomas of Canterbury

April 19, 2023

May 17, 2023

Installation Mass and Lunch Catala Club Scholarship Recipients

*Subject to change due to the Covid-19 and its variants

SANTA CLARA UNIVERSITY CATALA CLUB

ORIGINAL 1930 PREAMBLE

As the University of Santa Clara has been in existence more than three quarters of a century, and as its expansion is commensurate with its years, it has been thought well to safeguard the pristine glories of the days of Mission and of College, to keep alive their traditions and to secure them their due place in the University.

To obtain this end more efficaciously, an organization has been formed in this year of Our Lord nineteen hundred and thirty, the one hundredth anniversary of the death of Padre Magin Catala, known as the Holy Man of Santa Clara in whose honor it will be known as the Catala Club.

That this organization may pursue its objects with greater success, it has been deemed necessary that a constitution and bylaws be written.

CONSTITUTION

ARTICLE I

Name

The organization existing under this constitution shall be known as the Catala Club of Santa Clara University.

ARTICLE II

Purpose

The objectives of the Santa Clara University Catala Club are those proper to an organization of service founded for the benefit of all the University. Catala Club shall stimulate enthusiasm and support for all those educational programs and social functions that assist Santa Clara University in achieving its academic goals. The Club serves the University by providing certain scholarships for undergraduate students. It instills in its membership vital interest in the history and traditions of the University by particularly promoting the family spirit that from early years had prevailed on campus. Catala Club remains at the service of the President of the University in those activities considered proper to Santa Clara's general welfare.

ARTICLE III

Membership

<u>Section 1.</u> Active membership is open to alumnae of Santa Clara University, to the mothers, sisters or relatives of students past and present, to the guardians of students, to the wives of alumni, to the feminine benefactors and friends of the University, to descendants of the early Spanish families of California who link the Catala Club and the University to their heritages of the past.

<u>Section 2.</u> Honorary membership shall be granted to the mothers of the Society of Jesus and, in special circumstances, to other individuals at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Honorary membership shall be given to each President of the Catala Club on completion of her term of office.

<u>Section 3.</u> Life membership is no longer granted. Those who attained life membership prior to termination of said membership retain their life membership status.

ARTICLE IV

Officers

<u>Section 1.</u> The officers of the Catala Club who enjoy voting power shall be President, First Vice President, Second Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer (appointed by the President), Historian and Immediate Past President. These officers and the Parliamentarian (appointed by the President), together with

fifteen additional Club members, shall constitute the Catala Club Board of Directors. Three Past Presidents who are willing to serve on the Board of Directors will serve as non-voting Advisors.

<u>Section 2.</u> The term of office for the President shall be two years. No President shall serve for more than a total of two consecutive terms.

<u>Section 3.</u> All the officers of the Club shall be elected annually and they shall perform the duties of their offices until their successors are elected and installed.

<u>Section 4.</u> The President of Santa Clara University shall be asked to name the Club's Chaplain who is encouraged to attend all meetings of the Club.

ARTICLE V

Amendments and Repeals

The original Preamble of 1930 shall stand as written. The updated Constitution and Bylaws reflect the Club's growth and bring it up to today's standards. The Bylaws may be amended or repealed at any general meeting of the Club by an affirmative vote of two-thirds of the members present, provided that such amendments or repeals have been introduced and approved at the previous meeting of the Board of Directors. The general membership is to be notified in writing one month prior to voting.

BYLAWS

ARTICLE I

Duties of Officers

<u>Section 1.</u> The President of Catala Club shall preside over general meetings of the Club and over those of the Board of Directors. While presiding at meetings, the President shall introduce the agenda items and invite discussion by the body, reserving her opinion until the end of discussion, so as to avoid influencing the body. She shall appoint all standing committee chairs. She shall serve as an ex-officio member of all committees except the Nominating Committee. She shall serve as an ex-officio member of the Santa Clara University Board of Regents. An oral report shall be given at the yearly Installation of the Officers meeting. The written report is presented to the incoming President.

<u>Section 2.</u> The First Vice President performs the duties of the President during her absence, her inability to preside or when requested to do so by the President. She shall render to the President any desired assistance and she shall act as Program Chair responsible for coordinating monthly programs.

<u>Section 3.</u> The Second Vice President shall act as Membership Chair and perform the duties of First Vice President during an enforced absence or when assigned a special duty by her or by the President.

<u>Section 4.</u> The Treasurer receives all the monies that come to the Club and shall disburse same under the direction of the Board of Directors. She shall keep an accurate account of receipts and disbursements and report both to Board of Directors at its regular meetings. A majority vote of the Board of Directors shall be necessary for any financial transactions.

<u>Section 4a.</u> The Treasurer is responsible to prepare an annual operating budget. This budget will be presented for approval to the Board of Directors at its first Board meeting in the Fall. The Treasurer shall have the authority to proceed with non-budgeted expenditures relating to SCU Catala Club business and/or non-budgeted expenditures that facilitate Catala Club operations that do not exceed \$300. Any and all non-budgeted expenses in excess of \$300 require Board approval. The Treasurer shall have the authority to approve payment of budgeted expenses upon receipt of proper documentation.

Section 4b. The Treasurer shall deposit all monies in the SCU Catala Club Agency Account.

Section 4c. At mid-year and at the end of each year, funds from the SCU Catala Club Agency Account may be withdrawn and assigned to an existing Catala Club undergraduate fully endowed student scholarship. The name Catala Club shall appear on all its scholarships. The name of that person or event being honored may precede the Catala Club title. Total amount of each endowed scholarship shall be determined by the Financial Aid Office of the University. Scholarship funds shall be presented to the University President for final assignment to a particular Catala Club Scholarship Fund. Throughout the year, as required according to the action of the Board of Directors, the Treasurer may withdraw or assign funds from the SCU Catala Club Agency Account to be used for projects or programs within the mission of SCU Catala Club and which have been previously approved by the Board of Directors.

<u>Section 4d.</u> The Treasurer of the Catala Club shall make a financial report at each Board of Directors meeting and, when deemed necessary, at general meetings of the Club.

<u>Section 4e.</u> At the end of each fiscal year, the Treasurer shall prepare a written report of monies given by Catala Club in support of its scholarships and other approved projects or programs at the University during the past twelve months. The report will be read at the Board of Directors and general membership meetings. A copy of the report shall be presented to the President of the University.

<u>Section 5.</u> The Treasurer shall deposit all monies in the SCU Catala Club Agency Account. Three signatures shall be on the authorization card: that of the President, Treasurer and Secretary.

<u>Section 6.</u> The Secretary shall attend all general meetings of Catala Club and those of the Board of Directors. She shall keep complete and exact records of the proceedings of said meetings. At the Board of Director meetings, she shall call the roll.

The Secretary shall keep a permanent record of all Club meetings and its business including: attendance, agendas and minutes, newsletters, correspondence, financial reports, etc. At the end of the year, this record shall be handed over to the Santa Clara University Archive Collection for permanent safekeeping.

She shall present incoming correspondence at a regular meeting of the Club and at the Board of Director meetings when so directed by the President. She shall be responsible to obtain correspondence addressed to the Club from SCU Mailing Services and distribute same as appropriate. At the direction of the President, she shall handle outgoing correspondence.

She shall perform other duties pertinent to her office as the President and the Board of Directors may require.

<u>Section 7.</u> The Chaplain shall be asked to open the Club's general and Board of Director meetings with a prayer. He shall be asked to assist the Club in its spiritual activities, share campus news and be available for consultation in other matters.

<u>Section 8.</u> It shall be the duty of the Historian to familiarize herself with the history of the Catala Club and keep a chronicle of the meetings, events and activities undertaken and accomplished by the Club. She will keep a scrapbook that shall contain press notices, programs, snapshots and similar items. She shall periodically incorporate materials in the Club's archive for permanent safekeeping in the Santa Clara University Archive Collection. Costs associated with this responsibility will be submitted to the Treasurer for reimbursement in a timely manner.

<u>Section 9.</u> The Board of Directors shall plan and adopt ways and means of carrying out the objectives of the Club. Only such business approved by the Board shall be presented to the general membership. The Board shall authorize the payment of current expenses and exercise general supervision over the activities and affairs of the Club.

<u>Section 10.</u> Except for illness or other excused absence, any member of the Board of Directors who is absent from three consecutive meetings automatically forfeits her place on the Board. A replacement is then named by the President.

<u>Section 11.</u> At the expiration of her term, all Board members shall transfer all records, documents, official correspondence and similar materials in their possession to their successor.

<u>Section 12.</u> The current Bylaws shall be kept as the official record by the current President, the current Parliamentarian and the current Board Secretary in a format that is easily transferable, eg. Document, download, memory stick. At term end of these named Club Officers, such Officers shall transfer the Bylaws to their appropriate successors.

ARTICLE II

Committees and Special Duties

<u>Section 1.</u> At the first general meeting of the new Board of Directors, the President shall name the various committee chairs on the new Board and she shall introduce same at the first general meeting of the Club.

<u>Section 2.</u> The Chairs of all fundraising events shall be appointed by the President from the Board of Directors or the general membership. The Chairs of fundraising events for the coming year shall be appointed as soon as possible after the current year's events.

<u>Section 3.</u> All other chairs or committee heads are to be chosen by the President from either the Board of Directors or from the general membership of the Club.

<u>Section 4.</u> Each committee Chair or head forms her respective committee and may expand it as needed. The President, however, shall be consulted prior to committee expansion.

<u>Section 5.</u> The Parliamentarian, preferably a Past President, shall be appointed by the President. She shall assist the incoming President as to correct procedures at formal meetings. She shall be the responsible Chair of the Bylaws and Standing Rules Committee. The Parliamentarian shall be a non-voting member of the Board of Directors.

<u>Section 6.</u> The Publicity Chair appointed by the President will inform the press of the time, place and other information regarding meetings and events. No information shall be given to the press except through the Publicity Chair after prior consultation with the President and Board of Directors, adhering to Santa Clara University publicity policies and guidelines.

<u>Section 7.</u> The Communications Director shall be appointed by the President and shall have the duties of publishing the Catala Club newsletter on a monthly basis, update the Club's website, social media and other online activities of the Club. She shall deliver the newsletter and any other communication as directed by the President or the Board to the membership via email or by mail in the event the member does not have access to email or prefers delivery by regular mail.

ARTICLE III

General Meetings

<u>Section 1.</u> The general meetings of the Catala Club shall be held on the third Wednesday of every month excluding June, July and August. On consultation with the Board of Directors, dates may be changed to a more convenient day. No general meeting will be held during the months in which fundraisers are held. The program for general meetings shall be sent to membership at least two weeks in advance via email or by mail if the member does not have access to email or prefers delivery by regular mail.

<u>Section 2.</u> Special general meetings of the Catala Club may be called by the President or at the written request of twenty members. Such general meetings may be held with six days prior notice provided to membership by mail or email by the Secretary. It is preferred that such notice be given via email to save the costs of mailing except in the event a member does not have access to email or prefers delivery by regular mail.

ARTICLE IV

Meetings of the Board of Directors

<u>Section 1.</u> The Board of Directors meetings shall be held on the first Wednesday of the month. On consultation with the Board of Directors, the day may be changed to a more convenient day. There shall be a minimum of eight (8) meetings of the Board of Directors per year.

<u>Section 2.</u> Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the President or at the written request of five Directors. Such meetings may be held with two days prior notice provided. Such notice may be given by mail, email or telephone; email is preferred to save the costs of mailing.

<u>Section 3.</u> The President is empowered to call special meetings of an Executive Committee composed of a quorum of five of the following: President, First Vice President, Second Vice President, Treasurer, Communications Director, Secretary, Historian, Immediate Past President and Parliamentarian. All members of the Executive Committee must be notified either by email or telephone at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting date. These meetings are called to discuss urgent problems or extraordinary needs.

<u>Section 4.</u> A Board member who is unable to attend an in-person Board meeting on the day of a scheduled inperson Board meeting may attend and participate in that meeting through electronic communication, i.e, telephone, video.

<u>Section 5.</u> In the event a matter of business comes before the Board and is not concluded at the meeting so that discussion extends over more than the time of one meeting of the Board, a vote on such matter may be taken by email or mail, according to the following procedure:

The Board member casting a ballot by mail or email must have been present for discussion during at least one meeting when the matter was discussed.

After the last meeting at which the matter was discussed by the Board, the President shall call for a mail ballot.

The President shall then prepare a written ballot on the question before the Board of Directors. The ballot shall state the question before the Board in a manner that will call for a vote either in the affirmative or negative (a "Yes" or "No" vote). This ballot shall be mailed or emailed to all Board members who were present at any meeting when the matter was discussed. Email shall be preferred unless the Board member does not have access to email or prefers delivery by regular mail in which case the ballot shall be mailed, regular U.S. mail.

The ballot shall provide a reasonable time (but not more than 10 days) for return of the ballot. Emailed ballots shall be downloaded by the Board member, completed and emailed back to the President, who shall download and print the ballot. The Board member may also return the ballot by U.S. mail. A ballot returned by mail shall be deemed returned as of the date it was deposited in the mail, evidenced by the postmark.

At the next meeting of the Board of Directors, or if the matter is time sensitive, and at a time and place selected by the President, the written ballots shall be opened and counted by at least two tellers appointed by the President. The results of the written ballot shall be announced at the meeting by email/mail, whichever is appropriate.

ARTICLE V

Guests

All Officers and Directors and the Chaplain are expected to attend the meetings of the Board of Directors. Committee chairs and/or Club members who have business to come before the Board may attend Board meetings as needed. Guests may be invited by the President to attend the meetings of the Board of Directors or by a member of the Board with the prior approval of the President. Guests may be invited to attend general meetings of the Club by any member of the Club.

ARTICLE VI

Ouorum

<u>Section 1.</u> Thirty members shall constitute a quorum on voting issues at the general or special meetings of the Club. A quorum of the membership at a general meeting must be present to conduct business that is subject to a vote by the membership. Unless otherwise specified in these Bylaws, matters subject to a vote at a general meeting may be passed with a majority of the voting members present, provided a quorum is present at the meeting.

<u>Section 2.</u> Fifteen members shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of the Club's Board of Directors. A quorum of the Board of Directors at a regular or special meeting of the Board must be present to conduct business that is subject to a vote of the Board. Unless otherwise specified in these Bylaws, matters subject to a vote at a regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors may be passed with a majority of the voting members present, provided a quorum is present at such meeting.

Section 3. Five members shall constitute a quorum at any special meeting of the Executive Committee.

ARTICLE VII

Dues

Section 1. The annual dues for all Catala Club members shall be determined by the Board of Directors and ratified by the general membership of the Club. Dues are payable by August 15.

<u>Section 2.</u> Honorary Life Members, Jesuit relatives and others who enjoy the privileges of Catala may make a yearly gift to the Club.

<u>Section 3.</u> New members paying dues after March 1st shall have their dues applied to the remainder of that calendar year and the following fiscal year (ending June 30). This does not apply to renewal membership.

ARTICLE VIII

Donations

When needed, donations to the Catala Club may be solicited; they must be given voluntarily by the donors. When soliciting contributions from individuals, the Catala member should remind the prospective donor that matching funds are often available from companies or corporations.

ARTICLE IX

Nomination and Election of Officers and Board Members

<u>Section 1.</u> At Catala Club's January general meeting, a Nominating Committee of seven members shall be named as follows:

Two members are selected by the President from the current Board of Directors. At the general meeting of the Club, the President shall ask the Parliamentarian to read the Bylaws on nomination (Article VIII) and announce the names of the members who served on the Nominating Committee the previous year. No member shall serve for two consecutive years on the Nominating Committee.

The President shall then call for the election of five members and two alternates from the general membership who have been active members in good standing for at least six months and who agree to serve. If such nominee cannot be present at the general meeting, the nominee's written consent may be obtained prior to the meeting and presented at the meeting. This committee of seven members shall meet at the discretion of its Chair to prepare a list of candidates for the offices of President, First Vice President, Second Vice President and other Officers and members of the Board.

<u>Section 2.</u> At the February or March general meeting of the Club, the list of candidates for the Officers and for members of the Board of Directors shall be announced by the Chair of the Nominating Committee or by her appointee. The President shall then ask if there are nominations from the floor. These names, if any, shall be added to the list prepared by the Nominating Committee. Then the President shall ask that all nominations be closed.

<u>Section 2a.</u> If there are no nominations from the floor, it may be moved and seconded that the election takes place immediately.

<u>Section 2b.</u> If there are nominations from the floor, a ballot with write-in space will be provided and an election will take place immediately.

<u>Section 2c.</u> The candidate receiving the majority of votes shall be declared elected to an office or to membership of the Board of Directors.

<u>Section 3.</u> Unless circumstances dictate to the contrary, only members in good standing for a period of one year shall be eligible for election to an office of the Club. It would be beneficial that any person accepting the office of First or Second Vice President consider continuance to the office of President.

Section 4. The members of the Board of Directors shall be elected for a period of two years.

ARTICLE X

Vacancies

All officer vacancies that might occur between elections shall be filled by the appointment of the President from the Board of Directors. Vacancies on the Board shall be filled by appointment by the President from the general membership.

ARTICLE XI

Liturgical Functions

<u>Section 1.</u> Deceased members of Catala Club will be remembered as a special intention at our chaplain's daily mass. An acknowledgement card will be sent to the surviving relative/family.

<u>Section 1a.</u> During the month of November, a special Memorial Mass shall be offered in the Santa Clara Mission Church for the repose of all deceased members of the Club. A notice of this event shall be sent to each member of Catala Club at least two week in advance of the Mass.

Section 1b. A Day of Recollection shall be held annually during Lent if possible.

Section 1c. Members of the Catala Club are encouraged to attend the funeral services of deceased members.

<u>Section 1d.</u> Lectors for Masses sponsored by the Club shall be selected from the membership by the event Chair.

ARTICLE XII

Allocations of Funds

The Board of Directors may allocate funds raised by the membership for purposes that are consistent with the Mission of SCU Catala Club as set forth in the Constitution. Such purposes include, but are not limited to, "educational programs and social functions that assist Santa Clara University in achieving its academic goals." The majority of funds raised shall be allocated for scholarships for undergraduate students to be awarded as set forth in these Bylaws. From time to time, the Board of Directors may allocate funds to other projects or programs that the Board may deem appropriate or as the Board may approve upon the request of the President of the University or his/her delegate. If the Board considers such an allocation, the matter may be considered and voted upon by the Board of Directors either at a regular meeting of the Board or at a special meeting of the Board that is called for that purpose.

ARTICLE XIII Rules of Order

<u>Section 1.</u> All questions not covered by this Constitution or Bylaws of the Club shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised, using the most current edition.

<u>Section 2.</u> At any general meeting, special meeting, regular meeting of the Board or special meeting of the Board, these Bylaws and/or Standing Rules may be suspended upon motion duly made, seconded and voted upon by the members present provided there is a quorum. Bylaws may be suspended only by a two-thirds vote of the voting members present, voting in the affirmative to suspend the rules. There is no prior notice to suspend the Bylaws or Standing Rules, as suspension of the Bylaws or Standing Rules occurs only in extraordinary or unexpected circumstances. There shall be no suspension of the Club's Constitution allowed at any time.

STANDING RULES

ORDER OF BUSINESS AT BOARD MEETINGS

- 1) Call to Order
- 2) Prayer/Chaplain's Report
- 3) Roll Call
- 4) Approval of Minutes
- 5) Correspondence
- 6) President's Report
- 7) Treasurer's Report
- 8) Officers' and Committee Reports
- 9) Unfinished Business
- 10) New Business
- 11) Adjourn
- 1. President The incoming President can begin to plan her year and choose Board positions as soon as the election of the new Officers and Board has been held. The President may add additional non-voting members to the Board of Directors, add new committees or make new appointments.
- 2. Installation of Officers The incoming President shall announce at the May Board meeting and at the Installation meeting her new appointments (i.e. the Parliamentarian, Liaisons to SCU affiliations and any voluntary positions not filled by an elected Board member.) A recognition announcement will be made at the Installation Mass of the names of those Board Members who are continuing on the Board to fulfill their second term and who were duly installed the prior year.
- 3. Event Chair Reserving hotel/club banquet rooms shall be done by the Chair of the event with the approval of the President. These reservations, with the approval of the Treasurer who interfaces with the SCU Finance, will initiate any needed reimbursement. All costs incurred in planning an event must have approval by the President, Treasurer and event chair. The event chair will present a complete written budget for approval to the President and Treasurer (who interfaces with the SCU Finance Office). Any financial changes within the budget line item must be approved in writing by the event Chair.
- **4.** *Invitations to Guests* A letter or card should be sent to all guests to any fundraising events over the President's signature and in some instances co-signed by the event Chair.
- 5. Newsletter All data sent with the Catala Club's newsletter should contain the Catala Club logo. Letters or announcements should have a signature and require prior approval of the President. The method of delivery of the newsletter shall be made by email to all members, except for those members without email access or who request the newsletter be mailed via regular U.S. mail.
- **6.** *Immediate Past President* The Immediate Past President shall stay on the Board as a Director with voting power until there is another Immediate Past President.
- 7. Second Vice President The Membership Roster will be updated and distributed annually to membership. Names of new members shall be published in the newsletter so that each member can add these names to her Roster to keep it up to date.
- 8. *Treasurer* The Treasurer shall inform the Board of Directors of the proper times to transfer funds into the Scholarship Funds and shall report when funds are dispersed for other projects or programs that have been approved by the Board of Directors.

- 9. **Parliamentarian** The Parliamentarian shall, with the committee selected by the President, suggest necessary changes, improvements or additions to the Bylaws or Standing Rules and present them to the Board of Directors and the general membership for approval. Any changes must be recorded and forwarded to the Membership Chair before printing of the next Roster.
- 10. Sunshine Chair The Sunshine Chair will send an appropriate card to family members of a deceased Catala member. In addition, the Chair will send a card to those Catala Club members or their immediate family members who are celebrating a special occasion or who have experienced a loss. Costs associated with this duty will be submitted to the Treasurer for reimbursement in a timely manner.
- 11. Catala Club Roster The Roster is a confidential listing for the use of the members of the Catala Club only and may not be used for solicitations, political, commercial or self-serving purposes.

These Standing Rules and Bylaws have been revised: 1968, 1985, 1991, 1992, 1994, 1995, 1999, 2000, 2007, 2010, 2014 and 2021.

2021-22 Ad Hoc Bylaws Review Committee

Mary Atwell Laurie Hernandez, ex-officio

Joan Cattermole Patricia Mahan Cathy De Maria Charlene Raisch

Jeannie Mahan, Chair